





Bucks HP6 5AW. www.chiltern.gov.uk

King George V House, King George V Road, Amersham, Telephone: 01494 729000 DX: 50711

Capswood, Oxford Road, Denham, Bucks UB9 4LH Telephone: 01895 837200 DX: 40261 Gerrards Cross www.southbucks.gov.uk

# **Joint Appointments and Implementation Committee**

# Monday, 13th May, 2013 at 5.00 pm

## Room 6, South Bucks District Council, Capswood, Oxford Road, Denham UB9 4LH

## REVISED AGENDA

(Report and Appendices for item 6 attached)

- 1 Apologies for Absence
- 2 Minutes (Pages 1 - 4)

To sign as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2013.

3 **Exclusion of Public** 

The Chairman to move the following resolution:-

"That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Act."

4 Shared Service Reviews (Verbal Report)

To consider an oral report of the Chief Executive.

- 5 Local Pensions Discretion: Augmentation (Verbal Report) To consider an oral report of the Chief Executive.
- 6 Harmonisation of Terms and Conditions (Pages 5 - 8)

To consider report of the Chief Executive.

Appendix A (Pages 9 - 12)

Appendix B (Pages 13 - 18)

#### Membership: Joint Appointments and Implementation Committee

Councillor Robert Burns-Green Councillor Isobel Darby Councillor Peter Jones Councillor Michael Smith Councillor David Spate

Councillor Barry Harding Councillor Paul Kelly Councillor Mrs Penelope Plant Councillor Roger Reed Councillor Duncan Smith Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council

South Bucks District Council South Bucks District Council South Bucks District Council South Bucks District Council South Bucks District Council

The next meeting of the JAIC is due to take place on Monday, 9 September 2013 (Chiltern District Council).

#### CHILTERN DISTRICT COUNCIL SOUTH BUCKS DISTRICT COUNCIL

## MINUTES of the Meeting of the JOINT APPOINTMENTS AND IMPLEMENTATION COMMITTEE held on 18 FEBRUARY 2013

## PRESENT:

Councillor	R Reed	South Bucks District Council	- Chairman
Councillors:	R Burns-Green Mrs I A Darby P M Jones P Kelly D Smith D Spate	Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council Chiltern District Council South Bucks District Council South Bucks District Council Chiltern District Council	

**APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE** were received from Councillors B Harding (South Bucks District Council), Mrs P Plant (South Bucks District Council) and M R Smith (Chiltern District Council).

#### 1 MINUTES

The Minutes of the meeting of the Joint Appointments and Implementation Committee held on 24 September 2012 were agreed by the Committee and signed by the Vice-Chairman (in the Chair) as a correct record.

## 2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

## 3 EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

## **RESOLVED** –

That under section 100 (A) (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended) the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item(s) of business on the grounds that they involved the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act.

## 4 CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S TEAM

The Committee had agreed on 24 September 2012 to establish a Personnel Principal Officer. In order to address capacity issues it had also been agreed to appoint an Interim (Joint) Personnel Officer for a six-month period. The Committee had further requested a further report prior to the recruitment of the established post.

The positive impact of the Interim Joint Principal Personnel Officer was noted. The critical ongoing work areas around harmonisation of terms & conditions and augmentation – amongst others – were also acknowledged, and the need to maintain momentum in these areas was emphasised. Members also considered that continuing with the interim arrangement would provide the necessary experience to facilitate not only harmonisation of terms & conditions but also the initial Phase 2 Service Reviews, whilst also providing a knowledge transfer to existing staff. The importance of continuity given the critical work underway was also acknowledged, and it was suggested that providing that there was sufficient funding available, a handover period would be beneficial to the Personnel Principal Officer once recruited.

After noting that continuing the existing interim arrangement for six-months should provide sufficient time to recruit – subject to an appropriate candidate – and that the costs of continuing with the interim arrangement were within budget, it was

## RESOLVED -

That the interim approach to filling the newly established post of Principal Personnel Officer – as set out in the report – be continued, and an open recruitment process to fill the permanent post be undertaken during the next six months.

Note: to enable the Interim Joint Principal Personnel Officer to attend the meeting for the report on Harmonisation of Terms & Conditions, the Agenda order was re-arranged.

## 5 LOCAL PENSIONS DISCRETION: AUGMENTATION

The Committee were asked to note the intention of Chiltern's Personnel Committee to remove the Council's Augmentation Policy subject to legal advice and consultation.

## **RESOLVED** –

That it be noted that subject to legal advice and consultation, Chiltern District Council's Personnel Committee are minded to remove the Augmentation Policy.

## 6 HARMONISATION OF TERMS & CONDITIONS

The Committee received an update on progress towards achieving harmonised terms & conditions for staff across Chiltern and South Bucks District Councils. Also included were the notes of meetings on 20 December 2012 and 28 January 2013 between Management Team, UNISON (Chiltern) and Staff Side (South Bucks). Subsequent meetings had been arranged for 4 March and 15 April.

It was noted that South Bucks District Council did not currently have Union recognition; however, this was being considered and a formal decision was expected shortly.

Concern was expressed that whilst harmonisation of terms and conditions was a significant piece of work, progress was slow and a greater sense of urgency was required. In particular, Members considered that it would be helpful for harmonisation to have been achieved in time for the outcome of the first two service reviews in April. Whilst understanding the concerns of staff, and hoping that they would be happy with the harmonised terms & conditions once agreed, it was noted that harmonisation remained a Member decision.

In response to the concern, the Chief Executive endorsed the need for continued momentum towards harmonised terms and conditions. The meetings held so far between Management Team, Staff Side and UNISON had been constructive; however, there remained complex negotiations ahead. The lack of Union recognition had complicated matters at South Bucks since the staff-side representatives did not formally represent staff. At Chiltern, there were also ongoing issues around augmentation. However, it was important to note that discussions on harmonisation would not impact on the progress of the first two service reviews. Whilst harmonised terms & conditions would help facilitate the move towards shared services, there were existing shared services – for example, waste with Wycombe District Council – where staff initially had different terms & conditions.

It was emphasised that it was important to see the financial implication (if any) of each element that made up the respective terms & conditions so that Members could identify the larger cost items. It was intended that harmonisation of terms & conditions between the two authorities would be cost neutral as a minimum.

Consideration was given to imposing an end date for the harmonisation of terms & conditions. However, it was considered that it would be more appropriate to agree a date whereby the negotiated schedule of proposed harmonised terms & conditions would be ready for consultation.

In relation to Job Evaluation, it was noted that both authorities utilised different Job Evaluation schemes to assess the level and grading of posts. The Committee considered it important that whichever Job Evaluation scheme was utilised – and it was acknowledged that there were alternatives to those in operation at both authorities – that value for money was achieved for the taxpayer in a timely fashion.

It was agreed that a briefing note would be circulated to all JAIC Members following the 15 April meeting between Management Team, UNISON (Chiltern) and Staff Side (South Bucks) giving the latest position.

After re-emphasising the need to maintain momentum, it was

## **RESOLVED** –

- 1 That the comments of the Joint Appointments and Implementation Committee, regarding the update report on harmonisation of terms and conditions, be noted.
- 2 That the current position in relation to the organisational change policy and job evaluation be noted.

- 3 That the further involvement of the two Deputy leaders at future stages of consultation discussions be agreed.
- 4 That a Briefing Note be sent to the Joint Appointments and Implementation Committee giving the latest position following the 15 April meeting between Management Team, UNISON (Chiltern) and Staff Side (South Bucks).

## 7 DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

The dates of future meetings were agreed as follows:

- Monday 13 May 2013 (at South Bucks)
- Monday 9 September 2013 (at Chiltern)
- Monday 16 December 2013 (at South Bucks)
- Monday 17 March 2014 (at Chiltern)
- Monday 23 June 2014 (at South Bucks)

All meetings would commence at 6pm.

## The meeting ended at 7.25 pm

Item 6

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted

Document is Restricted

Page 18

Appendix B